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QUATERNARY ANIMALS FROM SCHUILING CAVE
IN THE MOJAVE DESERT, CALIFORNIA

By Treopore Downs', HiLpecarpE Howarp?®, THomas CLEMENTS?,
anp GERALD A. Smrra?

INTRODUCTION

This is a report on a cooperative investigation of a recently discovered
cave in Southern California by archeologists, paleontologists and geologists
from three institutions: the San Bernardino County Historical Society,
the Los Angeles County Museum, and the University of Southern Cali-
fornia. The discovery of this cave brings to light the first complete account
of a southern California Pleistocene cave fauna. A preliminary paper,
stressing archeological finds, has been published by G. A. Smith (1955).
Howard (1955a, p. 20) has briefly discussed the birds, and Brattstrom
(1958) has written on the reptiles from the cave.

The data from this study aid considerably in the interpretations of
age relationships of the Mojave Desert geologic events, provide more
information on the paleogeographic disiribution and morphology of the
late Pleistocene mammals of the coastal area, and give a brief view of the
environment of the not too distant past of the Mojave Desert region.

The cave is located approximately two miles southeast of Newberry
in San Bernardino County, California, in the SW14, NE1/, Sec. 9, T8N,
R3E, San Bernardino Base and Meridian. This area is shown on the
Newberry quadrangle map of the U.S. Geological Survey, 1955 ed. The
locality has been given Los Angeles County Museum, Vertebrate Paleon-
tology locality No. 1123 (see fig. 1). The cave measures approximalely
18 feet in width, 13 feet in horizontal depth and 7 feet in height, and is
situated about 10 feet above the floor of the present dry canyon that cuts
through the volcanics and old alluvial fill. The site is approximately 2160
feet above sea level.

In December of 1853, Dr. Walter Schuiling, Curator for the San
Bernardino County Museum Association, discovered the small cave and
found that it contained a great variety of prehistoric life forms. After the
initial discovery, Schuiling was assisted by Ritner Sayles and G. A. Smith
in the recovery of human remains from the top layers (24-30 inches) of the
cave deposits.

'Curator, Vertebrate Paleontology, Los Angeles County Museum.

*Chief Curator of Science, Los Angeles County Museum.

*Curator of Mineralogy, Los Angeles County Museum, and Chairman, Department of
Geology, University of Southern California.

‘President, San Bernardino County Historica! Society.

-

Fig. 1. Location of Schuiling Cave, L.A.C.M. V.P, No. 1123; shown on part of the
Newberry, California quadrangle, San Bernardino Co., U. S. Geol. Survey, topographic
map, 1955 ed. Scale 1:62,500.
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Extinct animals were first located below the human remains in
December of 1953, and soon thereafter Dr. Smith invited the Los Angeles
County Museum paleontologists to continue excavation and study of the
material. Many individuals contributed their time and energy in digging
out the fossil material; only a few of these can be mentioned: Mr. Burr
Belden, Mr. Carl Cambridge, Mr. Thomas Heric and Mr. Leonard C.
Bessom. We are indebted to Mr. Geoffrey D. Woodard and Mr. R. H.
Tedford for helpful suggestions and Mr. Arnold G. Kluge for aid in
plotting the cave horizon data. Mr. George F. Brauer made the photographs
of the map and specimens; Mr. Richard W. Saar prepared the final charts
of the cave fauna distribution.

L.A.CM. refers to Los Angeles County Museum, vertebrate paleontology
specimen numbers; SB refers to San Bernardino County Museum Asso-
ciation specimen numbers.

EXCAVATION PROCEDURE

Three basic reference points were established for measuring the
position of the material in the cave. Point A (see fig. 7) was the lowest
prominent rock projecting from the roof of the cave, at a distance of 4
feet from the rear of the cave and about 9 feet from the entrance. Two
more reference points were established near the ceiling at the northwest rear
corner (West point) and northeast rear corner (East point). These points
(see fig. 8) were marked by inserting permanent iron spikes in the cave
wall. Horizontal measurements were taken from the West and East points,
and depth measurements were taken {from point A for each specimen
discussed in this report and other lesser maierials not itemized.

Before the cave was disturbed, the top layer of pack rat guano and
debris accumulation was about six inches below the ceiling of the cave.
Excavation operations were discontinued when the apparent floor of the
cave was reached at about seven feet below the ceiling.

A more detailed account of excavations performed by the San Bernar-
dino County Historical Society and the Los Angeles County Museum
personnel is given in Smith (1955).

GEOLOGY

Schuiling Cave is a shallow opening in the side of a small canyon
cut in rhyolite of probable Miocene age (fig. 2). It is but one of many
such caves in the area, and probably originated as a large gas pocket in
the lava. Apparently the cave was exposed when the canyon was cut in
the rhyolite during the normal process of erosion.

When first discovered, Schuiling Cave was almost completely filled
with unconsolidated angular fragments, mostly of rhyolite, in a matrix
of finer particles of the same material, and fine aeolean dust. Some perlite
fragments (volcanic glass) also were present, presumably derived from
outcrops observed up the hill from the cave. While some of the larger
chunks of rhyolite in the cave may have fallen from the roof, much of
the material is alluvial fill, washed by sireams into the cave after it
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was first opened by erosion. This is evidenced not only by the nature of
the material, but also by the fact that the fill is similar to remnants of
alluvial deposits that remain along the borders of the canyon wall just
down stream from the cave (fig. 3).

The last-mentioned remnants of alluvial fill, now deeply dissected,
occur on both sides of the canyon, and indicate that after having been
cut originally, the canyon was later filled, at least to an elevation approxi-
mating that of the top of the cave and possibly some 10 feet higher. Still
later, this fill was dissected and largely removed as the canyon was again
eroded or exhumed. The canyon, therefore, has had a somewhat complex
history.

It is the opinion of the writers that the canyon was first cut by
siream erosion and the cave exposed in early Pleistocene time, when
the Newberry Mountains were first uplifted. It is further postulated that a
later rise of local base level caused the stream to aggrade its channel,
and filling started. This aggradation must have been brought about by
the presence of a lake, possibly ancestral Troy Lake, in the basin to the
north and east into which the stream probably drained (see fig. 1). A
more humid climate of the Ice Age was prol)a])ly responsible for the
presence of this lake, as well as for similar lakes in other basins through
out the desert (as for example, in Death Valley and Manix).

When the canyon fill reached the elevation of the floor of the cave,
the cave also began to fill as the ancient stream, meandering on its
aggrading floor, occasionally swept in material. It was probably durlng
the early part of this period of deposition that the bones of various
Pleistocene mammals, reptiles, and birds (which included water birds) were
buried. These were either washed in by the stream, or brought in by other
animals, or were the bones of animals using the cave for shelter. The
bones were buried as more detrital material was carried in by the stream.
Possibly in the later part of the same depositional period the artifacts
were brought in and buried as the cave continued to fill.

With the change in climate at the end of the Pleistocene, and the
advent of greater aridity, the lake disappeared, and base level was again
lowered. The rejuvenated stream, although enfeebled by the diminished
rainfall, nevertheless began the dissection of the deposits that had accumu-
lated in the canyon while the lake was present. But whereas an aggrading
stream sweeps from side to side, and could fill a cave, a degrading stream
cuts vertically downward, and so the canyon was rejuvenated without
apparent disturbance of the deposits in the cave.

It is possible that during the time of the stream rejuvenation, the
artifacts and a few of the skeletal remains were buried in the cave dust
that is so common in the upper strata. This would imply a difference in
time of deposition of some of the bones. The definite restriction of the
human remains to the upper levels of the cave (see fig. 7) substantiates
















































